
Date Published:15 January 2019     

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee

Wednesday 23 January 2019 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

ORGANISATION ITEMS

1  APOLOGIES Stephen Bace

2  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 12) Stephen Bace

3  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS Stephen Bace

SCRUTINY ITEMS

4  SCRUTINY REVIEW UPDATE (Pages 13 - 16) Simon Harper

5  BUDGET SCRUTINY: DRAFT MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 
(Pages 17 - 24)

The Committee to consider the draft report following the Budget 
Scrutiny day on 10 January 2019.
 
Members are asked to agree the report to be received by Cabinet at 
the meeting on 30 January 2019.
 
For information, the Draft MTFS was presented to Cabinet on 19 
December and can be found at the link below:

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=11
7&MId=8903&Ver=4 

Cllr Patrick 
Molyneux

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=117&MId=8903&Ver=4
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=117&MId=8903&Ver=4


    

6  FINANCE UPDATE (Pages 25 - 44)

In addition to the  update on the County Council's Revenue & 
Capital outturn expenditure for 2018/19, a report has been provided 
on Debt Management for Members’ information.

Paul Blacker

REPORTS FROM COMMITTEE CHAIRS

7  HEALTH AND CARE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Meeting held on 15 January 2019. 

TO FOLLOW

Cllr Carole 
Allaway Martin

8  ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Meeting held on 16 January 2019

TO FOLLOW

Cllr Robert Bird

9  CHILDREN AND FAMILIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Meeting held on 17 January 2019

TO FOLLOW

Cllr Brian 
Robinson

TASK GROUPS

10  NEW TASK GROUPS 

INFORMATION ITEMS

Forthcoming Decisions can be found at:
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?&RP=0&K=0&DM=0
&HD=0&DS=1&Next=true&H=1&META=mgforthcomingdecisions&V=0 

Attached to this agenda pack is a list of task groups and ongoing scrutiny work. Once 
task groups have reported, recommendations will be followed up every 6, 12 and 18 
months through the monitoring report received by this committee

Membership –  Cllr Robert Bird, Cllr Iain Dobie, Cllr Andrew Gravells, Cllr Kate Haigh, 
Cllr Jeremy Hilton, Cllr Paul Hodgkinson, Cllr Carole Allaway Martin, Cllr Patrick Molyneux 
(Chairman), Cllr Shaun Parsons, Cllr Brian Robinson and Cllr Rachel Smith

Added Members - 

Co-Opted Member - 

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?&RP=0&K=0&DM=0&HD=0&DS=1&Next=true&H=1&META=mgforthcomingdecisions&V=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?&RP=0&K=0&DM=0&HD=0&DS=1&Next=true&H=1&META=mgforthcomingdecisions&V=0


    

whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer 
(Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 
prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect Minutes or 
Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact:
Stephen Bace, Senior Democratic Services Officer (Scrutiny Team)
:01452 324204/fax: 425850/e-mail: stephen.bace@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is permitted subject 
to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please contact Democratic Services (tel 
01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of 
the public and do not wish to be photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services 
Officer on duty at the meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:andrea.clarke@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee held on 
Friday 30 November 2018 at the Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT: Cllr Patrick Molyneux (Chair), Cllr Brian Robinson, Cllr Andrew Gravells, 
Jeremy Hilton, Kevin Cromwell, Kate Haigh, Cllr Rachel Smith, Carole 
Allaway Martin, Paul Hodgkinson, Iain Dobie, Rob Bird   

Cllr Richard Boyles, Cabinet Member Children and Young People

Substitutes: Cllr Alan Preest for Cllr Shaun Parsons

Officers in attendance: Jane Burns, Simon Harper, Rob Ayliffe, Stephen Bace, Chris 
Spencer 

Apologies:

67. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

Agreed as a correct record.

68. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

In relation to minute 77, Cllr Andrew Gravells declared an ‘other’ interest that he 
was a governor of Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust. 

69. SCRUTINY REVIEW 

69.1 Simon Harper introduced the report outlining the workshops that had been 
undertaken on 25 October and 14 November. Both had been well received and the 
report identified the areas that Members had raised at the sessions. This included 
the importance of parity of esteem, work-planning and quality of reports.

69.2 A lead members meeting had been arranged on 4 January 2019.  It was likely that 
there would be another workshop to look at what had not been covered so far 
including Member development and the shape of scrutiny moving forward.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

69.3 One member raised the fact that the scrutiny members had an opportunity to make 
recommendations  and that this was not always taken advantage of.

69.4 The report outlined the need to recognise the role of the Statutory Scrutiny Officer 
in promoting the scrutiny function and acting as a source of independent advice. 
One member asked for clarification over the point around it being a conflict of 
interest for the officer to sit on the Corporate Management Team (COMT). It was 
explained that if the officer was also a service director then they would have an 
interest on that service and might not offer the same degree of independence. One 
member stated that the report should reflect the fact that the Statutory Scrutiny 
Officer had parity of esteem and access to the same information as COMT. In 
response, members and officers clarified the fact that currently the Statutory 
Scrutiny Officer did have access to that information but that it would be helpful if the 
role was documented appropriately.
ACTION Simon Harper

69.5 In relation to the point about considering appointing opposition vice chairs, 
members noted that it was important to pick members to be Chair and Vice Chair 
based on what skills and expertise they could bring to the role.  

69.6 Some members expressed concern that the report did not detail the structure of 
scrutiny and they felt that this needed to be considered. In addition there was a 
discussion to be had around how committees were resourced particularly those 
who had very full agendas. One member raised the importance of differentiating 
between those issues that were provided just for information and those issues that 
needed detailed scrutiny. Lead Members would consider how these points could be 
taken forward as part of the next steps of the review. 
ACTION Lead Members

70. CHILDREN'S SERVICES 

70.1 As requested at the last meeting of the Committee, Cllr Richard Boyles, Cabinet 
Member Children and Young People, outlined the reasons for the budget 
overspend in this area and the actions being taken to address this. He explained 
that services were being redesigned to do the best for children as well as to control 
the spend on placements, particularly those out of county. Where high cost 
placements were made, a full review was undertaken with reassessments carried 
out when necessary. The overspend in the non dedicated schools grant was 
forecast to be £6.32m. With regards to agency staff on the frontline, they made up 
around 40% of staff. This needed to be addressed as that led to high turnover and 
affected the stability of the frontline. 

70.2 One member raised the issue of using business rates retention (one off money) to 
address the overspend, noting that this was on top of the additional money which 
had already been in the service. In response it was explained that it was important 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

to provide proper care for vulnerable children and that the complexity of cases and 
increase in numbers were leading to this pressure. 

70.3 Chris Spencer, Director of Children’s Services, explained that it was important to 
consider whether the Council was an outlier in terms of numbers in care. With 
regards to proportion of population, the numbers in Gloucestershire were up 
compared to other authorities but not an outlier. It was outlined that previously the 
Council was potentially under-identifying children that needed support but now were 
getting better at recognising and reacting to those who needed protection. A lack of 
confidence would also lead to greater numbers of referrals. 

70.4 The Committee requested a high level breakdown of children in care so that 
members could understand what some of the underlying causes. 
ACTION Chris Spencer

70.5 Members asked whether the numbers of children needing support would continue 
to increase and so overspends would continue into the future.  In response it was 
explained that it was hoped that the numbers of children in care would not rise; As 
practice on the ground improved this would help to control this. It was explained 
that there were signs that a corner had begun to be turned although there was still 
progress to be made. Work was underway to better understand what value the 
Council was getting for the money it spent. The current budget assumption was 
£61,000 per placement but the actual spend was around £84,500. 

70.6 There was some discussion around difficulties procuring as part of the South West 
framework. The Council was considering other options with regards to this. In 
addition there had been a number of on spot purchasing, and it was important to 
move towards block purchasing to provide better value. It was explained that 
practice issues lead to high cost placements and last minute emergency 
placements. The better the council becomes at managing places, the better value 
for money the council will get. It was explained that an analysis of savings made 
over the next two to three years suggested that £7m could be saved across the 
service if the numbers stayed the same.

70.7 Members understood that discussions had been had with Essex Council discussing 
similar situations relating to how best to work with partner agencies and manage 
this area of budget.

70.8 One member suggested in-house provision so that the Council was not a hostage 
to the market. Members were informed that the Council was looking at taking out 
some of those high cost placements and re-assessing what provision could be 
provided. 

70.9 Retention and recruitment of staff was discussed, with one member asking how 
much analysis was being undertaken about what we say should be happening and 
what was actually happening on the ground. In response it was explained that this 
was an area that concerned the Director because of areas of high turnover. 40% of 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

open cases have had 3 or more changes of social worker in the last 12 months and 
this would have a huge impact on the child. 

 70.10 It was discussed how the cost of placements were apportioned amongst partners 
and this was a conversation that the Council was beginning with partners including 
the CCG. It was suggested that nationally a greater proportion of the costs around 
those cases with complex needs were shared out with partners.

70.11 Regarding unqualified social workers making visits, everything was risk assessed 
and with oversight of management. It was important as part of the development of 
trainee social workers that they had the opportunity to go out ‘solo’ but it was not for 
statutory visits. This policy was reinforced and the need to appropriately risk assess 
this was a key part of management to training.

70.12 One member asked for the comparison of agency workers and workers here at the 
county council in terms of career earnings. It was suggested that while there were 
short term benefits over the longer term there were additional ones from being part 
of the County Council. Members understood the difficulties around recruitment 
agencies and their practices and this had been lobbied at a national level. 

 

70.13 Members requested details of recent audits undertaken in the Children’s budget. 
ACTION Paul Blacker/ Chris Spencer

70.14 There was some discussion around the High Needs block within schools budget. 
There were a number of ‘blocks’ relating to funding for education and Schools 
Forum was deliberating as to whether they should shift money out of those blocks 
and into the High Needs block. This would have an impact on schools depending 
on how many pupils had special educational needs.  If the high needs block was 
not increased there would still need to be support provided to those pupils. This 
was a growing risk. As a local authority, the Council would write to the Secretary of 
State to support a proposal to top slice the schools budget by a percentage as the 
risk has shifted. The Council was still carrying a risk into the next financial year of 
£1.7m. There was a contingency for the high needs budget in case of overspend 
built up over a number of years. In response to a question about whether the 
Council should be making its own funding available to schools, it was explained that 
additional funding and intervention at an early stage would always have a better 
impact but it was difficult to influence schools.

70.15 Members discussed the impact of exclusion on a child, with it being explained that it 
was not only a disappointing outcome for the child but also increased costs to 
Gloucestershire.  It was felt that there were perverse incentives within the system 
with a fragmented educational landscape that reduced the ability of local authorities 
to influence schools. 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

. 

70.16  Returning to the discussion around social worker recruitment, members were 
informed that the Council was implementing a comprehensive ‘grow your own 
strategy’. The plan was to over recruit newly qualified social workers and train them 
so that as agency workers left, those new staff could fill those vacancies. The 
Council was doubling the number of student placements and recruiting social 
workers from India.   

70.17 One member asked how the Council would visibly celebrate our social workers. In 
response it was explained that the senior leadership team was tasked with ‘getting 
out and meeting people’. The Director also went out and visited localities.  

70.18 Members thanked the Director for his openness with detailing the situation in this 
budget area. 

71. FINANCE UPDATE 

71.1 Paul Blacker introduced the report which presented the forecast of the year end 
revenue position which showed an overspend of £2.711 million (0.66% of the 
budget). Aside from the challenges in the Children’s area as detailed in the previous 
item, members noted the £700,000 overspend in Community and Infrastructure.        

71.2 In regards to the Tech and Corporate budget, there was an additional income of 
£2.5m from interest credits. 

71.3 £10.3m of savings had been achieved and the Council was on target for £18.7m for 
the year.

71.4 For the Business Rates Retention pool, the £4.6m figure had been revised to 
£7.2m. This was based on the returns from district councils and could potentially 
rise to £14.4m. The final figure would not be available until April 2019 and there 
were no plans to use any of that forecasted funding for in year spending. The 
Council was lobbying for a no detriment clause for the following years pilot.

71.5 The Committee noted that at the previous meeting it had received a detailed 
presentation on debt management. One member asked that the latest position be 
update at each OSMC meeting. 
ACTION Paul Blacker 

72. SCRUTINY OF PERFORMANCE 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

72.1 The Chairs of the service specific scrutiny committee’s were invited to feed back 
any performance issues raised at their committee meeting. Cllr Allaway Martin 
raised the issue of the high workload of the Health and Care Scrutiny Committee 
and the need to manage resources in that area. It was noted that Health and 
Wellbeing Board also came under their remit. 

73. STRATEGIC PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT REPORT 2ND QUARTER 2018-
19 

73.1 Rob Ayliffe introduced the report showing that the Council was meeting or 
exceeding 75% of targets overall.

73.2 For Children’s Social Care, members were shown a graph which outlined the 
numbers of rereferrals, those readmitted to care and those becoming subject to a 
Child Protection Plan for a second or subsequent time. The high levels of re-work 
reflected historical actions and the expectations was that improvement was likely to 
take twelve months. Another graph showed an increase in the number of children 
on a child protection plan. As the rate of children on a plan increased, the 
conversion to children in care had dropped, this suggested that the numbers of 
children admitted to care will not necessarily increase as a result, and with the right 
support many of those children’s needs may reduce. The Council was hitting 
targets for the number of initial assessments completed for children on time.

73.3 In Adult Social Care, the performance data showed the continued steady decline in 
those people needing long term support and care. 

73.5 Performance data around drug and alcohol treatment showed a decline in the rates 
of people successfully completing treatment. However the new provider was doing 
more outreach and reaching a greater number who would benefit from the service. 
It was understood that those individuals were likely to have more deep seated 
problems and so that reduced the success rate. There was work going on with 
Public Health England to identify whether anything needed to be done to turn 
performance around. One member raised the importance of using actual numbers 
and ensuring that there was clarity around what indicators were showing. It was 
clarified that in this instance they were national indicators and showed deteriorating 
performance. 

73.6 Cllr Allaway Martin explained that an item on drug and alcohol treatment was on the 
work plan for Health, Community and Care. Members agreed that this was the best 
place to start the scrutiny of the work and if there were further concerns members 
could then decide on the best course of action. One member stated that it would be 
helpful to see statistics broken down by district in order to really get underneath the 
issues. This would be taken on board when Health and Community and Care 
considered the issue. 

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

73.7 Members noted the figures around the number of accidental dwelling fires. They 
recognised that this was a volatile target and that the overall trend was a gradual 
decrease but in three of the last four quarters the target had been missed. In 
response to members’ questions, it was explained that this was mainly due to 
cooking and electrical fires. It was suggested that at the next Environment and 
Communities Scrutiny Committee an update should be provided on the work being 
carried out around this including the number of Safe and Well checks.
ACTION Rob Bird/ Sophie Benfield

73.8 In relation to complaints received:

 Children’s Social Care complaints and representations received, there had 
been a 9 % decrease in formal complaints compared to the previous year 
with 92% dealt with at stage 1. 

 Adults – there had been a 21% decrease in complaints. In the previous year 
there had been quite a high number relating to the Appetito contract. 

 Corporate complaints – there had been188 overall with 22% related to Amey 
(which was an 8% decrease in previous year). 

.

74. PERFORMANCE REPORT - STRATEGY AND CHALLENGE (2ND QUARTER 
2018/19) 

74.1 Jane Burns presented the report which detailed overall good performance and the 
budget pressures. Members noted delays in the Archives Project. 

75. PERFORMANCE REPORT - CORE COUNCIL (2ND QUARTER 2018/19) 

75.1 Paul Blacker presented the report and provided detail on sickness absence which 
was showing an improvement on the previous year. In relation to the in year 
savings through the Meeting the Challenge programme the report was corrected to 
ready £10.281m.

75.2 In relation to ‘Invoices paid in 30 days’ the council was at 95% which was higher 
than the target. 

75.3 With regards to the Council’s overall budget and the current overspend, a £1.9m 
over-spend had been reported this time last year and had finished on a break even 
position. 

75.4 £2.3m asset sales had been achieved and the service was confident that the £12m 
target would be achieved by end of the financial year.

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

75.4 One member queried the fact that the ‘days lost to sickness absence’ target was at 
the same level as what was achieved in the previous year. It was explained that this 
was an area we were performing well in and so the aim was to maintain that level of 
performance. 

76. ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

76.1 Cllr Rob Bird presented the report from the meeting on 7 November 2018.

76.2 One member suggested that Environment and Communities Scrutiny should look in 
more depth at the IPCC report on Climate Change. The member was advised to 
raise this at the next meeting of the committee to be added to the work plan.

76.3 One member commented that opening hours of recycling centres had been covered 
by the committee. In addition, questions had been asked at full Council on the 
subject of whether there might be a charge on waste materials that were 
considered non-household. The member felt that he had received conflicting advice 
and would pursue this outside the meeting. He also had the opportunity to raise this 
at the Environment and Communities Scrutiny Committee.  

77. HEALTH AND CARE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

77.1 Cllr Carole Allaway Martin presented the report from the meeting on 13 November 
2018.

77.2 Cllr Gravells advised the Chair that when writing to the Gloucestershire Hospitals 
NHS Foundation Trust that it should be copied to all members of the Board to 
ensure all had sight of it. 

78. POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

78.1 The Committee noted the report in the absence of the Chair.

78.2 Members understood that the Police and Crime Commissioner had presented his 
outline business case to the Police and Crime Panel.  One member raised the 
importance of Environment and Communities Scrutiny having an opportunity to 
speak to the Commissioner and to respond to the consultation. Members were 
informed that a meeting was being arranged to allow for this.

78.3 One member raised her concerns about the perception of the Council given the 
tensions between the County Council and the Police and Crime Commissioner. She 
suggested that mediation could be undertaken to try to resolve issues. 

Page 8



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 9 -

79. CHILDREN AND FAMILIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

79.1 Cllr Brian Robinson presented the report from the meeting on 21 November 2018. 
The focus of the Committee was to get closer to the ‘front end’ of the processes in 
order to be confident that the journey the Council was on was the right one.

80. GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY 

80.1 The committee welcomed Cllr Kevin Cromwell as the newly appointed Chair of the 
Committee. He explained that work planning had been undertaken on 21 November 
and that this had been with members across all parties.  

81. NEW TASK GROUPS 

No new task groups were proposed.

CHAIRMAN

Meeting concluded at 12:30pm

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee (OSMC) –30 November 2018

Topic Action Responsibility Progress

149. SCRUTINY REVIEW 
50.

Provide documentation 
of Statutory Scrutiny 
Officer role.

Lead Members to 
consider points raised as 
part of their ‘next steps’ 
meeting on 4 January 
2019

Simon Harper

Lead Members

In progress.

Report provided to 
committee on 23 January 
2019.

2.63. CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
64. The Committee 

requested a high level 
breakdown of children in 
care so that members 
could understand what 
some of the underlying 
causes were.

Members requested 
details of recent audits 
undertaken in the 
Children’s budget.

Chris Spencer

Paul Blacker

Circulated  on 28 December 
2018

Circulated  on 28 December 
2018

351. FINANCE UPDATE 
52.

Latest position with 
regards to debt to be 
updated at each 
committee meeting

Paul Blacker

 

Report included in agenda 
papers for January 2019 
meeting. 

465. STRATEGIC 
PERFORMANCE 
MANAGEMENT REPORT 
2ND QUARTER 2018-19 

66.

Fire - It was suggested that 
at the next Environment and 
Communities Scrutiny 
Committee an update 
should be provided on the 
work being carried out 
around this including the 
number of Safe and Well 
checks.

Cllr Rob Bird/ 
Sophie Benfield/ 
Andy Hermiston

The Chairman  to raise at 
work planning for the 
committee. 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Taking scrutiny forward
 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee – 23 January 2019

At the last meeting of the committee on November 2018, a report was presented 
on the outcome of the scrutiny workshops.  A meeting of lead members was 
subsequently been held to consider the themes emerging from the workshops 
and to identify next steps. The key points were:

Scrutiny culture

a) ‘Parity of esteem’ between executive and scrutiny members.  The 
executive should be open to scrutiny, recognising that this relies upon 
effective working relationships and trust on both sides. 

b) Scrutiny committees should be non-political and constructively challenge 
the ‘issues’ rather than be seen as a mechanism for scoring political 
points.

c) Scrutiny should set its own agenda and not be influenced by the executive.  

d) Members have a personal responsibility to ensure that they are adequately 
prepared for meetings.  Where necessary, this includes undertaking 
background research.

e) Ask probing questions and do not abandon issues in the face of vague 
answers.  Ask follow-up questions seeking more information, including 
timelines.   

f) Wider awareness of national issues.  For example, considering the Local 
Government Ombudsman national report on complaints to identity 
emerging concerns.  

Scrutiny structure and working practices

a) Appoint scrutiny committee vice-chairs from opposition groups, 
recognising that the chairs are likely to be drawn from the majority group.  
This is already the case for some scrutiny committees.

b) Member development – Scrutiny to take ownership of the programme 
through a Member Development Group.

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



2

c) Effective work programming is integral to ensuring that scrutiny is 
effective.  A good work programme is more likely to result in effective and 
timely work that affects local people and adds value. The list of 
forthcoming executive decisions, formerly the ‘cabinet forward plan’ is a 
key source of information for scrutiny members.  Use resources wisely and 
recognise that it is not possible to scrutinise everything.  Each committee 
should follow a consistent approach to work planning with the involvement 
of lead members. 

d) The quality of officer reports needs to be improved by ensuring that they 
are written in Plain English and follow a standard format including an 
executive summary.

e) The practice of submitting reports for noting should be avoided. Scrutiny 
should not become a ‘talking shop’ with no tangible outcomes. There is an 
important role for the chair, vice-chair and support officer in ensuring that 
there is an outcome for each item.

f) Recognise the role of the Statutory Scrutiny Officer in promoting the 
scrutiny function and acting as a source of independent advice to non-
executive members. Steps are being taken to document the role including 
the relationship with the Corporate Management Team and Statutory 
Officers.

g) The committee structure needs to be adjusted to make the workload 
manageable. 

Questions

1) How should scrutiny engage with the public? What is the best mechanism 
to do this - public question time, holding meetings outside Shire Hall, 
webcasting meetings, petitions, social media? 

2) What is the right level of officer support for scrutiny committees?

3) How can scrutiny agendas, including work planning, be managed better – 
more focused with a maximum of three items at each meeting? 

4) How should performance and financial information be reported?  Could 
this involve a wider role for the Audit and Governance Committee?

5) How should member development be taken forward?  Would it be helpful 
to hold a workshop to explore this in more detail?

6) Should the appointment of scrutiny vice-chairs from opposition groups be 
formalised in the constitution?

Page 14



3

7) What changes are needed to the current scrutiny committee structure to 
facilitate a new approach? How can the breadth of Health and Care 
Scrutiny and Environment and Communities Scrutiny be managed 
effectively?  How should Vision 2050 including the Council’s Strategy be 
scrutinised?
]
Current committee structure below:
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee
Health and Care (with district representation)
Children’s
Environment and Communities
Economic Growth (with district representation) 
Audit and Governance 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee

January 2019

Report to Cabinet on Draft 2019/20 Budget

1. PURPOSE

To report observations from the committee following its process of gathering 
evidence in order to advise Cabinet on council and budget priorities for the 
draft  2019/20 budget. 

2. INTRODUCTION

2.1 Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee has the lead role in terms of 
budget scrutiny and produced a response on the draft budget on behalf of the 
scrutiny function as a whole. A ‘Budget Scrutiny’ day was held on 10 January 
2019. This included sessions with Cabinet Members and Directors for each 
scrutiny committee to discuss the budget. OSMC members were in 
attendance throughout the day in order to identify any recurring themes and 
trends.

2.2 This response outlines the key observations and comments made in response 
to the draft Medium Term Financial Strategy which goes to Cabinet on 30 
January and is to be approved at full Council on 13 February 2019. 

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 Cabinet on 19 December 2018 approved for consultation and scrutiny the 
detailed draft budgets for 2019/20, the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS), which includes the Treasury Management Strategy. 

3.2 Members recognise that the draft MTFS proposes a budget totalling £428.356 
million and is based on a 2.99% Council Tax increase. In addition there is the 
final year of the Adult Social Care levy which allows the Council to increase 
council tax levels by 2% specifically to fund Adult Social Care. This 2% levy 
raises an additional £5.6 million for Adult Social Care services. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



4. OBSERVATIONS

4.1 Scrutiny Members were provided with background regarding developments 
since the consultation budget had been issued. The Financial Settlement is 
due in late January/early February, the provisional settlement included:

 The flexibility to increase general council tax up to 3% confirmed

 Confirmation that Gloucestershire was unsuccessful in its application to be a 
Business Rate Retention Pilot in 2019/20

 £0.272 million new decrease in funding as a result of the reduction in New 
Homes Bonus of £0.422 million offset by an increase in Section 31 grants of 
£0.150 million.

 Confirmation of additional Social Care Funding
o £2.53 million to manage winter pressures and reduce burden on NHS
o £4.32 million to improve social care for older people, people with 

disabilities and children. This amount is split evenly between Adults 
and Children.

 Fair Funding Review consultation launces as part of provisional settlement 

 Updated tax base information was due from the district councils by end of 
January 2019.

4.2 Communities and Infrastructure & Economic Growth

4.2.1 Members recognise the strategic direction outlined in the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy, its reliance upon embracing technological enhancement 
and the importance of taking action to enable planned growth and change. 

4.2.2 Members sought assurances that fast broadband would be made available to 
everyone in Gloucestershire. It is recognised that this depends upon the 
market being able to deliver this and that the focus is on trying to deliver 
superfast broadband to the final 2.5%. This will become increasingly difficult 
due to the physical barriers in place and so bespoke options will be provided 
where possible. Members emphasised the importance on universal 
broadband and how critical it is to delivering our services. The example was 

Page 18



given of the objectives of the health service in terms of diagnostic and 
monitoring work that could only be achieved through broadband.  

4.2.3 It was explained that investment  had been made into Highways and in 
particular the investment in the resurfacing programme. Alongside this 
investment, Highways Local equates to £10,000 per member within the base 
budget. Members emphasised the importance of the local councillor having 
the ability to use this money in a flexible way. Some members felt that this 
figure should be increased to match the amounts that had been provided in 
previous years of up to £30,000 per member. It was recognised that this had 
been achieved through one off additions to the previous budget made at full 
Council. 

4.2.4 It was clarified that the previous Lengthsmen Scheme which had been 
available to members had been incorporated within the Highways Contract 
with a change of name. This is now called Community Maintenance Gangs 
and is aimed at better reflecting their role in the 21st Century. Scrutiny 
Members queried the amount that was now available for members to call 
upon as part of this and emphasised the importance of allowing the 
prioritisation of work to remain with the local Councillor. 

4.2.5 Some members expressed concern about the ability for interested groups to 
access the ‘Big Community Offer’. It was explained that this offer provided 
communities with the information and guidance to decide on the priorities for 
their area on Highways and to put forward an expression of interest for match 
funding. It had been acknowledged that there had not been a high take up of 
the offer. Some members feel that it is unclear how this offer can be accessed 
for areas that do not have parishes. Scrutiny members wish to emphasise the 
importance of ensuring that there are mechanisms in place that would allow 
the offer to be accessed by all communities. 

4.2.6 There was a question asked on the investment in a health hub which included 
investment in a car park. It was suggested that rather than encourage cars 
into the city that investment should be made in public transport in order to 
support these developments. Members understood that discussions were 
underway with students about what improvements might be made in the area 
and that a business case would need to be drawn up if this was to be 
developed further.                 

4.2.7 Scrutiny members recognise the savings programme within the Fire and 
Rescue Service aimed at improving the efficiency of the service without being 
detrimental to communities and firefighter safety. The Cabinet Member was 
comfortable with the year 1 savings of £160,000 but scrutiny members feel 
that there is less certainty going forward and have expressed concern about 

Page 19



the Service being asked to make savings at a time when scrutiny and audit 
are carrying out reviews looking at the culture and governance.

4.2.8 Members recognised the uncertainty within the budget around the pay award 
for Firefighters in the future. This was a long term issue with the role of the 
firefighter also a subject of discussion with unions. No final decisions had 
been made nationally and so estimates were included in the budget.

4.2.9   Some members have raised concerns about the level of information provided 
noting that they would welcome more detailed figures beneath the headlines. 
One member noted the importance of clearly seeing the impact on the change 
in figures to service delivery.

4.3 Adults and Public Health

4.3.1 Members understand that the 2018/19 net budget for Adult Social Care within 
the draft Medium Term Financial Strategy was £134.6 million which is the 
biggest area of expenditure of the County Council. This supports 
approximately 25,000 people who had a disability, are vulnerable, or live with 
an age-related disorder, as well as commissioning services aimed at 
addressing social care and health inequalities, promoting health and well 
being.  Members were informed that the focus was on reducing the reliance 
on long-term residential care and move towards self-directed support.

4.3.2 The proposed budget for 2019/20 includes an additional increase of 2% for 
the National Social Care Levy. In addition to meeting the costs to date of 
implementing the Care Act, the increase will be used to part address the 
impact of demographic changes on cost pressures. 

4.3.3 Members asked questions around the cost reductions outlined within the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy. Members recognise that the Adult Single 
Programme with iMPOWER and the projects within this looking to help 
manage demand, lead to better outcomes and deliver savings. Members were 
urged to consider the market position statement which had been released.

4.3.4 Some members have highlighted the reliance we have on communities to 
help provide support for older and vulnerable people. Questions were asked 
on how the Council would support communities which in turn would help us to 
reduce costs within the system. It was explained that a number of groups and 
organisations were grant funded by the Council with the Growing 
Communities fund provided as an example of how councillors had helped to 
identify those groups or organisations that could make a difference.  It was 
recognised that there were often a number of service areas competing for 
members to use that money to support initiatives. Scrutiny members wish to 

Page 20



emphasise the importance of members having oversight and helping shape 
the direction on spending to help support community groups.

4.3.5 Members noted challenges within the domiciliary care market and asked 
questions as to whether the Council maintained the resilience and budget to 
be able to step in should providers encounter difficulties. It was explained that 
the Council understood this as a risk and that there was an allocation in the 
budget relating to market conditions. The Commercial Team undertook due 
diligence checks and ensuring that providers were fit for purpose before 
entering into contractual arrangements.

4.3.6 In response to questions, it was explained that the Council was more robust in 
terms of the recovery of debt, with a particular focus on adult social care. This 
has to be handled sensitively where there were vulnerable clients. On 
occasions a legal process has to be followed and this could take time. Very 
little debt was written off and scrutiny members emphasised the importance of 
continuing to be robust in the recovery of money owed.

4.3.7 Members raised the issue of mental health and wanted assurances around 
the way in which the Council funded activity in this area. It was explained that 
a small percentage of overall public sector mental health spending came from 
the Council but that a large amount of work was carried out on the Public 
Health side. 

4.3.8 Members recognise the good working relationship with the Clinical 
Commissioning Group and the way in which these good relationships helps to 
maximise opportunities. 

4.3.9 In response to questions on the reduction in budget around the drugs and 
alcohol programme, it was explained that this would not have an impact on 
service as it was related to more accurate estimates around reimbursement of 
prescriptions. In relation to reductions in spending on health behaviours, this 
reflected the fact that initially money had been invested in developmental work 
that had now been completed.

4.3.10 Some members raised concerned around the small number of school nurses 
who not only support physical health but also mental health. Scrutiny 
Members wished to emphasise the importance of this role in helping to 
support the work around mental health.

4.3.11 Members recognise that while the Public Health budget is a relatively small 
budget it has a cross cutting impact on other budgets within the County 
Council and wider. Scrutiny members wish to emphasise the importance of 
lobbying government to ensure that this budget is maintained going forward.

Page 21



4.3.12 Recognising the points raised when considering the communities and 
infrastructure budget, members further discussed the importance of 
broadband in homes in order to ensure the success of initiatives in adult 
social care and public health. 

4.4 Children and Families

4.4.1 The Council has wide ranging responsibilities for services for children, young 
people and families, including leading and co-ordinating all local partners to 
ensure outcomes for children and young people improve. Members recognise 
the challenges raised through the March 2017 Ofsted inspection and the 
subsequent work that has taken place since then. In addition members note 
the development of the new ‘Families’ Framework which replaces the old 
Children and Young Peoples Plan (CYPP) outlining the County’s approach to 
the needs of children, young people and their families for the next 3 years.

4.4.2 Members understand that issues with recruitment and retention of children 
social workers has led to a large number of agency workers within teams. 
This has led to pressure on the budget and has led to incidences of young 
people having three or more changes of social workers over a 12 month 
period. Work was underway to over-recruit Assessed and Supported Year in 
Employment (ASYE) Social Workers which would lead to an initial impact on 
the budget but with the future benefits of a more permanent and stable 
workforce.  It was felt that 8-10% of agency staff was a healthy position. 

4.4.3 Members noted the progress being under taken through the IRIS programme, 
which was helping to provide support at a time when the market was not 
sufficiently developed locally to meet the needs of young people and to 
provide good value placements. It was importance that work was carried out 
to help develop that market because the implications of high cost placements 
on the budget was substantial. 

4.4.4 Exclusions in Gloucestershire are at twice the number of the national average 
and members asked questions around what kind of early interventions and 
support with schools could be provided. This recognised both the negative 
outcome on the young person of an exclusion and the impact on budgets 
going forward. Some members raised the closure of Children Centres as 
being a contributory factor to pressures on other areas of the budget. Scrutiny 
members felt that going forward decisions such as this should be considered 
carefully with recognition of this wider budgetary impact. Some members 
questioned whether investment in this area would help ease pressures going 
forward. 

4.4.5 Members felt that the relationship between Councils and schools needed to 
be strengthened. Some members haved suggested considering opportunities 

Page 22



to invest in things that could help schools to support young people who were 
at risk of exclusion. It was recognised that any work with schools depended 
on a stronger relationship being developed. 

4.5 Core Council

4.5.1 Members recognised the importance in stabilising the Council’s ICT and 
ensuring suitable investment as systems become end of life. Part of this 
involves transition into ‘cloud’ based capability. This was an area of the 
Council’s budget that had been underinvested in the past. Some members 
emphasised the importance of picking up the pace of the ICT transition, noting 
the use of tablets instead of paper which would help provide more efficient 
working and savings related to printing costs.

4.5.2 There was some discussion around property disposals which was used to 
reduce debt and for future investment. A measured approach was taken to the 
way in which the estate was used in terms of reusing assets in new ways or 
selling to generate a capital receipt.

4.5.3 One member sought clarification that the increase in Members’ allowances 
had been budgeted for. It was confirmed that sufficient funds were available. 

4.6 Summary

4.6.1 Over the course of the day, members identified a number of key themes for 
Cabinet to consider going forward alongside the observations outlined in the 
narrative of this report. 

a) Members wish to highlight the importance of the Council’s budget 
being inter-connected. Members note the reliance on joined-up thinking 
between service areas in order to help deliver the Council’s strategy 
and manage the budget appropriately. Savings in one area of the 
Council’s budget will have a direct impact on another area. This 
extends beyond the County Council to all public sector spending and 
the way in which we work with partners. 

b) The Adults and Children budgets are high pressure areas and 
members have sought assurances that the budget is sufficient to meet 
the demands in those areas while improving the delivery on the 
ground.

c) Investment into early intervention should be considered a priority in 
order to achieve better outcomes for the individual and help the Council 
deliver the savings in a number of budget areas. 

Page 23



d) Our relationship with partners is vital in ensuring the success of the 
Council’s strategy and working with the budget. The example was 
given of the need to strengthen relationships with schools and provide 
support where appropriate. 

4.6.2 In addition, members reflected on the budget scrutiny process and how that 
might be further developed going forward. This will need to be considered by 
OSMC, but comments included a request for additional information against 
budget headings as well as benchmarking information and a greater focus on 
the Council’s strategy.

Cllr Patrick Molyneux

Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee

Page 24



Finance Update
Purpose of Report:  To provide an update on the County Council's Revenue & Capital 

outturn expenditure for 2018/19.

Officer:                      Paul Blacker, Acting Director of Finance (01452) 3258999
                Paul.blacker@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Revenue Expenditure 2018/19

A. Revenue Forecast  Outturn Position 2018/19

1. The current forecast of the year end revenue position against the revenue budget of 
£418.081 million, based on actual expenditure at the end of October 2018 and 
forecasts made in November 2018 is a £2.216 million overspend (0.53% of the 
budget). This represents a £0.495 million improvement on the position previously 
reported to Cabinet.

2. Details of the forecast year end position, analysed by service area is provided in the 
table below and the narrative that follows.

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



Directorate Breakdown for Cabinet Report - Position as at the end of Oct 2018

Variance

 Additional 
Budget from 

BRR Pilot

Revised 
2018/19 
Budget

%

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 % £000 £000

Adults 144,420 1,000 145,420 145,420 0 0.0% 0 0 

Prevention & Wellbeing 33,953 33,953 33,857 -96 -0.3% -40 -56 

Children & Families 103,488 2,600 106,088 113,315 7,227 6.8% 6,321 906 

Communities & 
Infrastructure

87,166 1,000 88,166 88,422 256 0.3% 701 -445 

Business Support Services 28,776 28,776 28,926 150 0.5% 0 150 

Support Services 
Recharges

-28,776 -28,776 -28,776 0 0.0% 0 0 

Total for Services 369,027 4,600 373,627 381,164 7,537 2.0% 6,982 555 

Unallocated BRR Pilot 
Money

0 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0 0 

Technical & Corporate 44,454 44,454 39,133 -5,321 -12.0% -4,271 -1,050 

Total 413,481 4,600 418,081 420,297 2,216 0.53% 2,711 -495 

Forecast 
Variance 

Previously 
reported 

Service Area
2018/19 
Budget

Forecast 
Outturn 
Position

Change in 
variance 

Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance

Adult Social Care

3. Adult Social Care is reporting a balanced position, using £1.722 million of the 
£2.530 million additional Adult Social Care Funding allocation announced by the 
Secretary of State for Health and Social Care on the 2nd October (the balance of 
£0.808 million has been agreed for joint or Gloucestershire CCG activity) and the 
uncommitted £0.800 million BRR funding. This will require an estimated drawing 
of £0.438 million from Adult Care Reserves at the year end. 

4. Adult Care reserves currently stand at £4.592 million and are therefore sufficient 
to cover the current forecast overspend. 

5. The £1.581 million Adult Social Care Support Grant is also presented as 
allocated in year, to offset the underlying overspend.  This is temporary funding 
in 2018/19.

Page 26



6. The MTFS savings targets for all client groups are integrated under the Adult 
Single Programme (ASP) and monitored through Weekly Governance meetings 
and the ASP Board.  Savings targets are grouped into seven themed project 
clusters.

7. MTFS contracted inflation/ National Living Wage funding is assumed to be 
committed in full.   This is still an assumption due to the number of outstanding 
decision that are needed and the financial impacts of these.

8. LD External Care is projecting a £1.967 million overspend. The overspend 
assumes the majority of 2018/19 savings targets will be found, although there 
are risks around a number of these.  Banked savings to date total £2.443 million. 
The overspend relates to increased demand and increased complexity of some 
cases.

9. OP and PD External Care is projecting a £1.661 million overspend. The 
overspend assumes delivery of the majority of the 2018/19 savings targets. 
Savings of £5.308 million (originally £5.750 million) are included within the 
forecast, though there are risks of not achieving the reduced savings.  £2.498 
million has been banked to date. The overspend mainly relates to increased care 
needs and therefore costs for existing cases as well as voids within homes run 
by a major provider.

10. Mental Health is forecasting an overspend of £0.948 million, net of unallocated 
MTFS funding held by the Lead Commissioner.  The overspend mainly relates to 
cases with increasing complexity and therefore higher unit costs. 

  
11. The overall Community Equipment and Telecare position includes an 

underspend of £0.073 million within Telecare services. Community Equipment 
services are in balance, including in-year funding from the Disabled Facilities 
Grant. 

12. Other Services comprise all staffing budgets for Adult Social Care, as well as a 
number of specific commissioned contracts.  The forecasts for these services net 
to a £0.193 million underspend including;

 £1.427 million significant overspends; LD in-house services 
(£0.378 million), LD Assessment, Support Planning and 
Management teams (£0.208 million), costs in excess of 
Integrated Better Care Fund (iBCF) allocations for the Hospital to 
Home services (£0.527 million) now covered from the Additional 
Social Care Funding, £0.170 million savings not achievable this 
year for the Periodic Payment  Contract (PPC) which is the bed 
based care framework and unfunded contract costs for the 
Electronic Call Monitoring system (£0.144 million).  

Page 27



 £1.378 million significant service underspends; £0.575 million 
OP/PD Integrated Social Care Management (ISCM), largely due 
to vacancies, £0.236 million relating to the Contact Centre, due to 
additional budget received, leavers and vacancy slippage; £0.240 
million unallocated government grant, £0.159 million 
uncommitted MTFS one-off Dementia funding and £0.168 million 
LD other commissioned services, relating to uncommitted 
Building Better Lives Development (BBLD) fund and employment 
service budgets.  

 A number of smaller service variances (under £0.100 million) 
netting to a £0.244 million underspend.

13. Unallocated budgets are reported as underspent by £4.310 million. 
 This variance includes £1.005 million surplus on permanent 

funding, mainly relating to £0.394 million uncommitted BCF 
funding and £0.366 million of ASC Levy held to support 
pressures emerging from the use of temporary funding (e.g. 
relating to the Additional Improved Better Care Fund). A further 
£0.245 million of unallocated Adults budget has also been 
identified. 

 The balance of £3.305 million relates to temporary funding, 
£0.345 million uncommitted Adult Social Care Support Grant and 
£1.722 million Additional Social Care Funding, £0.800 million 
BRR and £0.438 million Adults Reserves, as noted above.

Page 28



Prevention and Wellbeing 

14. Services within this area include Public Health, Supporting People and a 
number of smaller budgets covering the prevention hub team and grants.

15. The current forecast of the year end revenue position is an under-spend of £0.1 
million and is due to staff vacancies within the prevention hub team and low 
spend against the Healthwatch grant.

16. Public Health is reporting a balanced position. Services are funded by a ring-
fenced grant, which if unspent is required to be carried forward in a specific 
reserve. The in-year forecast for Public Health is an under-spend of £0.43 
million due to the delay in the development of a new service within healthy 
lifestyles and lower dispensing costs due to activity related to substance 
misuse prevention, smoking cessation and health checks. These variances 
offset the higher dispensing costs in sexual health and a cost pressure for a 
substance misuse drug treatment. The under-spend will be transferred to the 
Public Health reserve at year end.

17. Supporting People is reporting a breakeven position but this is based on the 
assumption that £0.17m of previous year MTC2 savings linked to Mental 
Health services will be covered by in-year savings.  

Children & Families

18. The current forecast of the year end revenue position as at November 2018 for 
non-DSG funded services is an over-spend of £7.23 million (6.81% of budget). 
The gross over-spend is £9.83 million, which is reduced to £7.23 million by 
using the £2.6 million one-off income from the business rates retention pilot. 
The increase in the over-spend of £0.91 million is due to the cost of agency 
safeguarding staff covering vacancies and higher activity levels and section 17 
and discretionary payments for foster carers.

19. At the end of October 2018 children in care numbers were 678 compared to 
549 at the end of March 2016 and although nationally the trend is increasing 
(circa 3% p.a.) other factors will include the improvement in social work 
practice through catching up on drift and delay in casework. The number of 
children in care continues to cause significant pressures on children’s services 
and in particular against the external placement and safeguarding staff budgets 
resulting in the over-spend. 

20. As part of the 2018/19 budget, additional investment of £7.6 million was 
approved for external placements. This investment was based on a maximum 
number of 280 external placements with a unit cost of £61,600 per annum 

Page 29



using an 80:20 fostering to residential weighting. The current forecast over-
spend against the external placement budget of £5.98 million (34.7% above 
budget) is due to a higher number of external placements than anticipated, 
within which the number of residential placements has increased in both 
absolute and proportionate terms. Many of the residential placements are 
required to meet the needs of highly complex children resulting in a current 
average unit cost of £86,700 per annum. There are currently 294 external 
placements, of which 69 are residential. The forecast has reduced this month 
by £0.25 million and includes contingencies of £2.4 million for new cases in-
year to allow for additional placements to replace existing care commitments or 
allow for high number of placements. 

21. In addition to this young peoples support are forecasting a £0.75 million over-
spend due to a number of complex cases and the additional cost of agency 
staff covering vacancies. The in-house fostering service is also forecasting to 
over-spend by £0.2 million due to staffing costs.

22. The Director of Children’s Service’s is leading a review of all high cost 
placements on a regular basis as part of the wider improvement work on 
permanence planning. The aim is to reduce the cost of external placements 
where appropriate, given the higher unit costs outlined above, ensure decisions 
around placement change and permanence are executed in timely child 
centred manner, and ultimately bring down the forecast over-spend. It is 
estimated that these reviews will result in approximately £1 million of cost 
avoidance in 2018/19, which has been built into the forecast. Improving social 
care practice to divert children from care at an earlier point and achieve 
permanence at the earliest opportunity will reduce costs in the longer term. 
These high cost placement reviews have so far resulted in estimated cost 
avoidance of £0.77 million in the current financial year.

23. Safeguarding staffing budgets have received £4.01 million of investment in 
2018/19 to reduce caseloads and improve practice within teams. Recruitment 
of social workers especially experienced staff continues to be a challenge. 
Agency staff have continued to cover staff vacancies or where caseloads 
remain high, resulting in a forecast overspend of £2.61 million. The increase in 
child protection cases has resulted in additional Child Protection chairs being 
employed on a temporarily basis resulting in a £0.48 million over-spend.

24. A higher level of activity is also causing an over-spend of £0.71 million in 
section 17 and discretionary payments for foster carers. New procedures have 
been put in place to review all significant payments and ensure consistency 
across teams. Additionally, a resource panel will be put in place to gate-keep 
significant section 17 expenditure. 

25. Despite the investment made by the council, the issue of recruitment and 
retention of social workers has continued to be a challenge.  To address this 

Page 30



the Chief Executive, supported by the Director of Children’s Services and 
Support Services has made a delegated decision to make a number of 
changes to social work pay scales and allowances in year, making 
Gloucestershire more competitive with neighbouring authorities. One-off 
proposals for allowances and over recruitment of newly qualified social 
workers, estimated at £1.11 million for 2018/19 will be funded from IRIS and 
Vulnerable People’s reserves. The continuation of these proposals beyond 
March 2019 will be picked up as part of the 2019/20 MTFS discussions. The 
release of the IRIS reserve is following the decision to review the project in light 
of the market sufficiency statement that is currently being developed.   Some 
additional permanent changes to pay scales and additional posts have been 
made via a decision by the Director of Children’s Services and are being 
funded through the budget held for agency staff since on the basis that this 
budget should see savings as permanent staff are recruited and retained; 
estimated cost of £0.38 million in year.

26. There are a couple of offsetting variances which include adoption, child 
arrangement and special guardianship orders which are forecast to under-
spend by £0.23 million due to lower than expected number of allowances and 
orders being made. Also, services for children with disabilities are forecast to 
under-spend by £0.32 million due to lower costs in the residential unit and staff 
vacancies in the field work teams.  In-year uncommitted contingencies of £0.26 
million have been released to offset the on-going cost pressures in social care 
budgets.

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) position

27. Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) funded services are forecast to be over-spent 
by £4.22 million in 2018/19. At the start of the year it was anticipated that 
balances carried forward from 2017/18 would be able to cover in-year demand 
pressures but the reported over-spend of £4.22 million exceeds the £2.3 million 
of uncommitted DSG balances brought forward resulting in a net over-spend of 
£1.92 million against the ring-fenced grant. As reported last year the cost 
pressures are in the High Needs Block with over-spends against Independent 
Special Schools (£1.15 million), special school places (£1 million), top ups for 
alternative provision services (£0.63 million) and mainstream primary schools 
(£1.2 million), all caused by increases to activity. The outturn report for 2017/18 
identified an on-going cost pressure of £0.5 million in the High Needs 
Programme at the start of the year and balances are being used to fund this 
pressure. 

28. The High Needs Programme is focussing on addressing this financial pressure. 
Whilst it was planned that balances brought forward should cover the pressure 
in year, this is no longer the case. Changes to funding arrangements are 
currently being discussed with the Schools Forum to bring the DSG back into 
balance. Any potential over-spend in future years which could not be 

Page 31



addressed through the DSG ring-fenced grant may result in a future financial 
risk to the Council. This reflects an emerging national picture, around which 
lobbying continues for additional funding and flexibility to move funding 
between DSG blocks.

Communities & Infrastructure 

29. Communities and Infrastructure current forecast is a £0.256 million overspend 
(0.3% of the budget).

30. Highways Commissioning are reporting an underlying £0.290 million overspend 
at this stage in the year however are working towards achieving a balanced 
position by year end through the use of the Pothole Funding where possible.  
The anticipated overspend is due to additional pothole repair works to recover 
the network following the severe winter, as well as the revised contract 
arrangements with Amey during the last year of the contract. Although there 
are some anticipated underspends on capital works during the last year of the 
contract, additional revenue costs are anticipated with demobilisation of the 
Amey contract and pre-mobilisation of the new highways contractor.  Some of 
these costs have been mitigated by the transfer of £0.500 million from the 
technical and corporate budgets due to positive experience on insurance 
claims handling within highways, reducing the forecast to the net reported 
position above.  Included in this net figure is £0.218 million of Highways Locals 
revenue contributions identified to part fund a number of structural 
maintenance schemes all of which have been agreed with individual 
Councillors and have been transferred to Capital.

31. The Integrated Transport budget is reporting a £0.060 million overspend 
position due to long term bus contracts being awarded which include 
inflationary pressures above those estimated in the MTFS. Further pressure on 
transport budgets can be expected as more bus contracts expire this year.  We 
are also closely monitoring the impact of fuel price inflation being higher than 
expected and the potential impact of legislative changes impacting community 
transport. 

32. Registrar’s are reporting an over recovery of £0.116 million of income based on 
current estimates.

33. Strategic Infrastructure are forecasting a £0.018 million overspend, due to an 
increased staff resource in Transport Planning required to manage the 
additional workload associated with emerging major transport schemes such as 
the west Cheltenham Cyber Business Park and M5 J10 and  additional 
scanning costs due to the office move of the Heritage function.

34. The Fire and Rescue Service, Waste, Libraries, Trading Standards and 
Coroners have small variances totalling £0.004 million overspend at year end.

Page 32



Business Support Services

35. The forecast outturn for Business Support Services is an overspend of £0.150 
million. 

36. The Business Support Services position includes the following 
recommendations:

 £0.045 million contribution to the AMPS capital budget funded by a 
contribution from the AMPS Revenue Budget in respect of Sandford Park 
dilapidation.

37. Within Business Support Services, the Strategy & Challenge function is now 
forecasting a £0.150 million overspend. This position reflects the in-year 
pressures arising from continuing increasing demands arising from childcare 
legal proceedings, and the additional costs arising from the need to use locum 
staff to cover continuing vacancies. Strenuous efforts are being made to fill the 
posts in question, but they are proving difficult to fill in part due to the increasing 
national demand for childcare legal staff. Robust monitoring is in place.  The 
costs of extraordinary legal child protection cases will be funded corporately.

Technical and Cross Cutting

38. The forecast outturn position for Technical and Corporate budgets is a £5.3  
million underspend (11.9% of budget), the main reasons are:-

39. Positive interest rate credits on balances are forecasting to achieve an over 
recovery of income of £3.1 million above budget reflecting better 
diversification of investments and longer term deposits and additional income 
following the Bank of England base rate change.

40. The 2018/19 budget included an MtC2 savings contingency; this was 
approved by Council to reflect the high risk nature of some of the savings 
programmes in demand led areas in 2018/19. Given the difficulties in 
achieving savings across some services as outlined in this report the full £1.6 
million contingency has been released to support the overall budget. 

41. There has been a re-tendering of the insurance contracts, which has resulted 
in a favourable forecast underspend of £0.182 million on the corporate 
insurance budget.  

42. In addition there is currently a favourable variance forecast underspend on a 
number of small corporate budgets totalling £0.418 million.

Page 33



43. The Business Rate Retention pilot in 2018/19 was estimated to result in £4.6 
million – this was built into 2018/19 Budget.  A report to the Gloucestershire 
Economic Growth Joint Committee in September 2018 estimated that based 
on the NNDR1 returns from the district councils the potential pilot gain would 
be in the region of £14 million. This Council’s share of the £14 million gain is 
£7 million which is £2.4 million in excess of the £4.6 million originally 
estimated.  The final position will not be known until the end of April 2019 
when outturn figures on business rates collected are available. It is proposed 
to transfer any surplus in addition to the originally estimated £4.6 million pilot 
gain to a Rates Retention Reserve. The MTFS report elsewhere on the 
agenda recommends that £2.23 million of this additional BRR Pilot gain 
should be used to fund one-off pressures within Children and Families in 
2019/20.

B. Delivery of Meeting the Challenge 3 Savings Programme

44. At the end of Quarter 2 of the 2018/19 Meeting the Challenge 3 (MTC3) 
savings plan, we are reporting £10.281 million delivered against a 2018/19 
target of £18.686 million. This represents 56.4% of the annual target now 
achieved, but is bolstered by the early delivery of savings from ‘Technical and 
Corporate’ budgets.

45. Including the £10.281 million already delivered, a total of £18.3 million is on 
track and forecast to be delivered by the end of the financial year, which 
would represent 97.9% achievement of the target.  That leaves a small 
shortfall in recurring savings.  Plans are in place to cover these by other one-
off savings for 2018/19, and to deliver the recurring savings in future years. 

46. Additionally, there are £3.305 million of outstanding savings yet to be 
achieved from Meeting The Challenge 2.  £1.283 million is on track to be 
achieved within 18/19.  The majority of the shortfall is on Public Health 
budgets, where there is sufficient provision in the ring-fenced grant carried 
forward from previous years to provide mitigation until the savings can be 
achieved.   Plans are being developed to recover the remaining savings and 
an update will be brought in future reports.

Page 34



MTC3 monitoring report - Q2 2018/19

Programme/Project
18/19 

savings 
target

Achieved 
to date

Forecast 
18/19 
(incl 

achieved)

At Risk 
in 18/19 Notes

MTC2 rollovers  £,000 £,000 £,000  

Children & Families 150 0 0 150
Now expected to be 
delivered in 20/21.

Public Health 2,496 1,059 1,059 1,437

PH reserves are being 
used to offset the shortfall 
until the full savings are 
achieved in 19/20 & 
20/21. 

Education 93 0 93 0  
ICT 131 0 131 0  

Supporting People 435 0 0 435

Plans to achieve the 
shortfall are in 
development.

Total MTC2 3,305 1,059 1,283 2,022  

MTC3      

Education 350 60 290 60

£60k is forecast at risk in 
18/19. A plan to cover the 
in-year position is in 
progress.

Adults Single Programme 11,561 4,212 11,561 0  
Public Health 641 641 641 0  

Supporting People 541 174 264 277

Delays in delivering 
savings can be covered in 
year by underspends 
elsewhere in the budget. 

Parking 50 0 50 0  
Integrated Transport 50 0 50 0  
Libraries 50 50 50 0  

Waste 167 28 118 49

Plans are in place to 
mitigate the shortfall in 
year. The remaining 
saving is expected to be 
achieved in full in 19/20.

Infrastructure Planning 50 50 50 0  
Fire & Rescue Service 160 0 160 0  
Support services 396 396 396 0  
Commercial approach 250 250 250 0  
Strategy & Challenge 20 20 20 0  
Corporate & Technical 4,400 4,400 4,400 0  

Total MTC3 18,686 10,281 18,300 386
Total MTC2 + MTC3 21,991 12,399 19,583 2,408

Page 35



C. Capital Expenditure

Current Spend 2018/19

47. The capital budget for 2018/19 is £97.988 million, a reduction of £5.743 
million since last reported to Cabinet due to budget realignment for 
November target setting.  Actual spend against the capital programme as at 
end of October 2018 is £46.716 million. 

Budget and Capital Forecast Outturn Position 2018/19

48. The forecast outturn position for 2018/19 against budgets is £99.837 million, 
showing a forecast overspend of £1.849 million. It is anticipated that this 
overspend will be financed by part of the additional funding approval 
requested below.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 2018/19

Service Area

Reprofiled 
Budget 
2018/19

Current 
Year 

Spend 
2018/19

% Current 
Year 

Spend 
against 

Reprofiled 
Budget

Forecast 
Outturn 
2018/19

Forecast 
Year-end 
Variance

£000 £000 % £000 £000
Capital Receipts Works Before Sale 0 0 0 0

Adults 8,281 2,824 34 7,698 -583

Children & Families 23,671 14,481 61 24,114 443

Communities
Highways 49,372 23,017 47 51,297 1,925
Strategic Infrastructure 1,984 1,463 74 2,003 19
Waste Disposal 625 158 25 625 0
Libraries 752 500 67 752 0
Fire & Rescue 1,027 140 14 1,027 0
Business Support
AMPS 8,217 2,912 35 8,262 45
ICT projects 2,327 373 16 2,327 0
Business Service Centre 282 0 0 282 0
Archives & Information Management 1,155 669 58 1,155 0
Customer 294 178 60 294 0

Total 97,988 46,716 48 99,837 1,849

Adults Capital Programme 

49. Adults schemes are forecast to spend £7.698 million in 2018/19, against a 
current budget of £8.281 million, forecasting a slippage of £0.583 million. This 
is due to slippage on the ERIC system replacement project.

Page 36



Children and Families Capital Programme 

50. Children and Families schemes are forecast to spend £24.114 million in 
2018/19, against a current budget of £23.671 million, giving a forecast 
overspend of £0.443 million. It is anticipated that this overspend will be 
financed by part of the additional funding approval requested in the Children & 
Families Capital Programme 2018/19 update report presented to Cabinet 
elsewhere on this agenda.

Highways Capital Programme 

51. Highways schemes are forecast to spend £51.297 million in 2018/19, against a 
current budget of £49.372 million, giving a forecast overspend of £1.925 
million, the key areas include; 

52. Structural maintenance schemes are forecasting to overspend in year by 
£1.213 million the majority of which relates to greater progress than expected 
on a number of projects. Additional funding is requested later in this report to 
cover the predicted in year overspend. 

53. The Integrated Transport schemes are forecasting to overspend by £0.327 
million in 2018/19 however the budget was deliberately set low to take account 
of a risk assessment of the ability to deliver projects due to external constraints. 
Funds are available in reserves to cover spending in the event that all of the 
forecast spend is achieved.

54. Large Integrated Transport Schemes including Growth Fund schemes are 
forecasting to overspend by £0.385 million which relates the new Cyber Park 
scheme awaiting approval for addition of LEP funds to the programme. If this 
approval is not forthcoming the scope of the project will be reduced or 
alternative funding found from Highways Capital grant.

Strategic Infrastructure Capital Programme 

55. Strategic Infrastructure schemes are forecast to spend £2.003 million in 
2018/19, against a current budget of £1.984 million, forecasting an overspend 
of £0.019 million. The forecast overspend relates to the Saturn Transport 
Modelling scheme and reflects the consultant’s most recent cost estimate 
which is due in part to better than expected progress with this scheme. Funding 
will need to be identified from future year approved capital budgets.

AMPS Capital Programme 

56. AMPS schemes are forecast to spend £8.262 million in 2018/19, against a 
current budget of £8.217 million, forecasting an overspend of £0.045 million. It 
is planned that this overspend will be funded by the revenue contribution 
requested below.

All other Capital Programmes

57. All other programmes are forecast to spend in line with the revised budget for 
the year.

Page 37



Changes to the Capital Programme in 2018/19 and future years

Children and Families 

58. Details of a proposed increase of £36.599 million to the Children and Families 
Capital Programme and a proposal to increase the capital budget accordingly 
are included in the Children & Families Capital Programme 2018/19 Update 
report presented to Cabinet elsewhere on this agenda.

Highways

59. It is proposed that Cabinet support an increase of £11.472 million in the 
Highways capital budget, funded by the following additional resources; 
 £3.300 million of LEP Grant for the Cyber Park Highways scheme (separate 

report to December cabinet)
 £0.218 million of Highways Locals revenue contributions identified to part 

fund a number of structural maintenance schemes all of which have been 
agreed with individual Councillors.

 £0.184 million additional Salix grant funding towards the Street Lighting 
programme of works.

 £0.096 million of developer and other contributions including £0.072 million 
from Herefordshire County towards the Lydbrook Bridge scheme.

 Less £0.231 million developer contribution relating to the Kingsway Estate 
that has been returned due to not being able to meet the conditions stipulated 
within the S106 agreement.

 £7.905 million DfT Local Highways Maintenance Funding – Budget 2018. In 
October 2018, the Chancellor announced in the Budget the Government was 
allocating a further £420 million of new money for local highways 
maintenance. This additional resource is being allocated using the highways 
maintenance funding formula and is for the repair of roads (including 
potholes), bridges and local highways infrastructure generally.

Asset Management and Property Services (AMPS)

60. It is proposed that Cabinet support an increase of £0.045 million in the Asset 
Management and Property Services capital budget, funded by the following 
revenue contribution; 

 £0.045 million from Adults Premises budget to the Asset Management and 
Property Services programme relating to the Sandford Park House 
dilapidation costs.

Overall Change to Capital Programme

61. As a result of the above changes, the overall capital programme will increase by 
£48.116 million - £2.413 million of which is anticipated to be spent during the 
current financial year.

Page 38



1

QUARTERLY DEBT UPDATE, 31/12/2018

Insert Portfolio 
name here (e.g., 
Highways and 
Flood)

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee

Background 
Documents

GCC Aged Debt Reports as at 31/12/2018 and 30/09/2018
Aged Debt Trend Report

Officer

Author

Paul Blacker, Acting Director of Finance (01452) 328999
paul.blacker@gloucestershire.gov.uk
Andy Hammerton, Finance Manager  (01452) 328909
andrew.hammerton@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Purpose of Report Provide a comparison of the current aged debt position (31st December 
2018) with the debt position 3 months ago (30th September 2018)

Appendices None

Page 39

mailto:paul.blacker@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.hammerton@gloucestershire.gov.uk


2

Age Profile of Outstanding Debt as at 30th September 2018 and 31st December 
2018

30th September 2018, total £8.6m

0 - 30 days, 
£3,208, 37%

31 - 60 days, £557, 
6%61 - 90 days, £886, 

10%

91 - 180 days, 
£857, 10%

181 - 365 days, 
£1,035, 12%

12 mths - 18 mths, 
£359, 4%

18 mths - 2 years, 
£404, 5%

2 - 3 years, £509, 
6%

More than 3 years, 
£809, 9%

(all chart figures in £000)

31st December, total £9.3m

0 - 30 days, 
£2,851, 31%

31 - 60 days, 
£1,139, 12%

61 - 90 days, £690, 
7%

91 - 180 days, 
£1,525, 16%

181 - 365 days, 
£924, 10%

12 mths - 18 mths, 
£482, 5%

18 mths - 2 years, 
£314, 3%

2 - 3 years, £517, 
6%

More than 3 years, 
£885, 9%

(all chart figures in £000)

Page 40



3

Age Profile of Debt – Last 5 Year Ends, 30th September 2018 and 31st December 2018

Total Debt

Date Total
£000

0 – 30
£000

31 – 60
£000

61 – 90
£000

91 – 
180

£000

181 – 
365

£000

More 
than 
365

£000

Total 
O/S 
Debt 

excl 0-
30 

days
£000

31/03/14 10,916 5,284 2,006 576 712 674 1,663 5,632 
31/03/15 10,546 4,539 1,527 530 1,027 929 1,995 6,007 
31/03/16 14,999 7,580 2,245 309 1,465 1,051 2,349 7,418 
31/03/17 10,527 4,916 317 432 692 795 3,375 5,612 
31/03/18 9,354 4,593 851 243 933 546 2,188 4,761 
30/09/18 8,625 3,208 557 886 857 1,035 2,081 5,417 
31/12/18 9,328 2,851 1,139 690 1,525 924 2,198 6,477 

Non-Social Care
 

Date Total
£000

0 – 30
£000

31 – 60
£000

61 – 90
£000

91 – 
180

£000

181 – 
365

£000

More 
than 
365

£000

Total 
O/S 
Debt 

excl 0-
30 

days
£000

31/03/14 7,860 4,798 1,850 436 253 245 277 3,062 
31/03/15 7,114 4,038 1,285 389 585 340 477 3,076 
31/03/16 11,715 7,105 2,078 126 1,000 598 807 4,610 
31/03/17 7,045 4,199 181 264 272 239 1,889 2,846 
31/03/18 5,485 4,004 470 119 462 80 350 1,480 
30/09/18 3,787 1,808 285 630 421 337 305 1,979 
31/12/18 4,538 1,848 896 474 823 197 300 2,690 

Social Care

Date Total
£000

0 – 30
£000

31 – 60
£000

61 – 90
£000

91 – 
180

£000

181 – 
365

£000

More 
than 
365

£000

Total 
O/S 
Debt 

excl 0-
30 

days
£000

31/03/14 3,055 485 155 140 459 429 1,386 2,570 
31/03/15 3,432 501 242 141 442 589 1,518 2,931 
31/03/16 3,284 475 166 183 465 453 1,542 2,809 
31/03/17 3,482 717 136 169 420 556 1,485 2,765 
31/03/18 3,869 589 381 124 472 466 1,838 3,280 
30/09/18 4,838 1,399 272 257 436 698 1,776 3,439 
31/12/18 4,789 1,002 243 216 703 727 1,898 3,787 

Page 41



4

Outstanding Debt per Service Area as at 30th September 2018 and 31st 
December 2018

30th September 2018, total £8.6m

Commissioning 
Director - Adults, 

£6,731, 78%

Children & 
Families 

Commissioner, 
£341, 4%

Communities and 
Infrastructure, 

£499, 6%

Prevention and 
Wellbeing Hub, £3, 

0%

Support Services, 
£968, 11%

Technical and 
Cross Cutting, £37, 

0%
All Other Areas, 

£45, 1%

(all chart figures in £000)

31st December, total £9.3m

Commissioning 
Director - Adults, 

£6,620, 71%Children & 
Families 

Commissioner, 
£331, 4%

Communities and 
Infrastructure, 
£1,081, 12%

Prevention and 
Wellbeing Hub, 

£59, 1%

Support Services, 
£1,128, 12%

Technical and 
Cross Cutting, £38, 

0%
All Other Areas, 

£70, 1%

(all chart figures in £000)

Page 42



5

Since the introduction of a dedicated credit control resource to the authority, debt 
has reduced from an average of £11-£12 million to approx. £8-£9 million. The vast 
majority of this improvement has been seen in the non social care element of our 
debt which currently equates to a balance of £4.5m. Most of this outstanding debt is 
less than 3 months old.

3/3
1/2

01
6

6/3
0/2

01
6

9/3
0/2

01
6

12
/31

/20
16

3/3
1/2

01
7

6/3
0/2

01
7

9/3
0/2

01
7

12
/31

/20
17

3/3
1/2

01
8

6/3
0/2

01
8

9/3
0/2

01
8

12
/31

/20
18

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16
18
20

Social Care Debt £ Total Debt £

£ 
M

ill
io

n

(Difference between solid red and solid blue lines = non-social care debt)

The overall debt figure is higher than the previous quarter due to some significant 
invoicing by Communities and Infrastructure in November (approx. £400k raised to 
Highways England for works carried out in the County on their behalf) and a further 
£350k of invoicing in December.  However, at the time of writing, payments in 
January 2019 for this area amount to over £400k so this debt figure will reduce. 

The Social Care debt balance has remained relatively stable during the period but 
the aging profile of social care debt is still an area for concern. There is a project 
initiative between Strategic Finance and all parties involved in Adult social care debt 
creation and recovery. This initiative is to review business processes in an effort to 
streamline and coordinate all activity which impacts customers and their outstanding 
debt. The overall objective is to provide prompt uncomplicated invoices to customers 
which should be easier to collect.

Progress is being made on this and now that a full compliment of social care debt 
recovery officers is in place, we anticipate that further improvements can be 
achieved.

We scrutinise older balances in the ledger on a frequent basis and regularly liaise 
with budget holders regarding the status of their outstanding debt. These 
communications may result in the establishment of bad debt provisions or in more 
serious instances where debt recovery activity appears to have no chance of a 
successful outcome, a recommendation for write off. All requests for write off have to 
be fully authorised by the budget holder and depending on value will also require 
sign off by the Director of Strategic Finance and Portfolio Holder.

Lowered the 
average monthly 
debt balance by 
approximately 

£3m-£4m 

Social Care Debt 
average £3.7m – 

but age profile 
increasing

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Scrutiny and working group update

January 2019

1 Health and Care Scrutiny Committee 15 January 2019

 Petition – Save North Cotswold X-Ray Services
 Adult Mental Health – What happens in a crisis situation
 One Gloucestershire ICS Lead Report


2 Children and Families Scrutiny Committee 17 January 2019

 Improvement Board Update
 Quality Assurance Framework: progress update report
 Children’s Centres – A position Statement
 Children and the Justice System

3 Environment and Communities Scrutiny Committee 16 January 2019

 Local Flood Risk Management Strategy Annual 
Improvement Plan

 HMICFRS Inspection

4 Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 23 January 2019

 Scrutiny Review Update
 Budget Scrutiny Report

6 Police and Crime Panel 4 February 2019

 Police Precept and budget
 Safe and Social Driving

7 Working groups

 Great Gloucestershire Achievers – Final Report finalised and sent to Leader of 
Council for response.(see attached)

Page 45

Agenda Annex

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=669&MId=9035&Ver=4
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=670&MId=9041&Ver=4
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=673&MId=9087&Ver=4
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=264&MId=9173&Ver=4
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=650&Year=0


2

 Biodiversity task group – Workshop held on 11 January 2019. Report being 
prepared.

 Fire and Rescue Service Scrutiny Task Group meeting held on 15 January 2019 
with Chief Executive and Leader of Council. Due to report in February 2019. 

Page 46



GREAT GLOUCESTERSHIRE ACHIEVERS 
SCRUTINY TASK GROUP

FINAL REPORT

1 Introduction

1.1 On 28 March 2018 Full Council Resolved:

a)    That this Council recognises:

i)       The Centenary of the Representation of the People Act 1918, which 
gave property-owning women over 30 and all men the right to vote in 
parliamentary elections, was a huge step forward for gender equality.

ii)      That Shire Hall, as a place of democracy, must be representative of 
the county that members serve and that there is little in the building that 
reflects the achievements of women and our diverse communities.

iii)    That the downstairs corridor and wall of ‘Great Gloucestershire 
Achievers’ has not been reviewed and updated for some time.

b)    That this Council proposes that, in celebration of the Centenary of the 
Representation of the People Act, a cross-party working group should be 
established to see how the walls of Shire Hall can reflect and recognise 
the achievements of our communities and their contribution to our 
county’s history.

1.2 A task group was set up to see how GCC can better reflect and recognise the 
achievements of the people who have made significant contributions to our 
county’s history.

1.3 Membership of the task group: Councillors Carole Allaway Martin, Joe Harris 
Stephen Hirst, Shaun Parsons, Klara Sudbury, Pam Tracey, Lesley Williams.

1.4 The task group spoke to Asset Management and Property Services, 
Gloucestershire Archives and the Leader of Council to explore the options as 
to how to best recognise Gloucestershire Achievers. 

1.5 Members have developed criteria for identifying achievers as well as 
considering the appropriate ways in which to recognise them within Shire Hall 
and through Gloucestershire Archives. Members have considered what action 
should be taken to ensure certain events, anniversaries and short term 

Page 47



celebrations are recognised appropriately as well as to allow for ongoing 
recognition of achievers.

2 Developing a criteria

2.1 The task group recommends that a Panel be appointed to consider 
Gloucestershire Achievers. This Panel should convene annually to consider 
suggestions from Members of Council and the Public. This panel would 
determine suggestions for individuals to be recognised against the following 
criteria:

 Achievers should fall into at least one of the following categories: 
Public Life, Sports, Arts. Business, Science, Education, and Social 
Contribution.

 Individuals should have made a significant contribution to the county, 
though they have not necessarily been born in the county, and have 
not necessarily achieved the same level of national/international 
recognition as those that are recognised through the plaques on the 
Staircase outside the Council Chamber.

 Consideration should be given to ensuring that there is a balance in the 
recognition of achievers across the categories and throughout 
Gloucestershire. 

 An initial focus on women to help address current imbalance.

 Achievers can both be those who have been prominent in communities 
and those who have been real ‘trailblazers’. 

 Achievers should be recognised posthumously. Permission would need 
to be sought where appropriate. 

 Using the guidance outlined in section 3 of this report, the Panel would 
have the mandate to decide upon the appropriate method of 
recognition depending on the individual.

2.2 The public should be invited to nominate against the above criteria with an 
initial promotion of this. Those nominated will be recognised by 
Gloucestershire Archives and not necessarily through displays within Shire 
Hall. The task group recommend that a process is developed with input from 
Gloucestershire Archives and the Communications Team. 

Page 48



3 Recognising Gloucestershire Achievers

The task group considered the ways in which achievers were being 
recognised by the County Council and discussed the options going forward. 

3.1 The plaques on the Staircase

Those recognised on the stairs outside the Council Chamber are 
individuals who were born in the county and have achieved national/ 
international recognition though they might have spent some of their 
life away from Gloucestershire. As more Gloucestershire Achievers are 
identified they can be added to this display if they meet that criteria.

3.2 Shire Hall Reception

Members recognise that there is planned refurbishment of the 
reception area and corridor. This affords a great opportunity to consider 
how to make the space more welcoming for visitors with a more 
contemporary design.  The task group recommend that as part of the 
refresh, a digital display be installed that would allow for a rolling 
display of achievers and provide the flexibility for it to be changed to 
celebrate other events and individuals over time. In particular, 
members note that there are a number of display boards that have not 
been updated over time. Consideration should be given to removing 
these to allow the space for the digital display. 

3.3 Shire Hall Rooms

The task group feel that there is also an opportunity to name some of 
the rooms of Shire Hall according to Great Gloucestershire Achievers.

3.4 Records retained through Gloucestershire Archives

The task group recommend that Achievers should be recognised 
through a permanent record in Gloucestershire Archives promoted via 
the website which can be updated over time. 

Page 49



4 Centenary of Representation

The initial focus should be on women as women are underrepresented in the 
displays of Shire Hall.  In the 100th anniversary year of the Suffragette 
Movement, it was considered appropriate to give much greater prominence to 
female achievers.

The task group recommend that a special celebration of Gloucestershire 
women should be developed and displayed in reception for a period of around 
6 weeks. Using the criteria outlined at section 2 of this report, the task group 
have drawn up some initial names that should be considered as part of this 
celebration.

5 Summary of recommendations

The task group recommends:

a) Achievers should be recognised through a permanent record 
maintained by Gloucestershire Archives and promoted via the website 
which can be updated over time. 

b) That a Panel be appointed to consider Gloucestershire Achievers. This 
Panel should convene annually to consider suggestions from Members 
of Council and the Public, identifying achievers against the criteria 
detailed in the report.

c) That a process is developed with input from Gloucestershire Archives 
and the Communications Team to allow the public to nominate 
achievers.

d) That as part of the refresh of the Shire Hall reception area, a digital 
display be installed that would allow for a rolling display of achievers 
and provide the flexibility for it to be changed to celebrate other events 
and individuals over time.

e) That a special celebration of Gloucestershire women should be 
developed and displayed in reception for a period of around 6 weeks. 
The first step would be display this on the website. 

Page 50


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	Action sheet 30 November 2018

	4 Scrutiny Review Update
	5 Budget Scrutiny: Draft Medium Term Financial Strategy
	6 Finance Update
	OSMC Debt Report December 2018

	 Information Items
	GREAT GLOUCESTERSHIRE ACHIEVERS - Final Report


